ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COVM TTEE
March 1, 2005
8:04 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Paul Seaton, Chair
Representative Carl Gatto, Vice Chair
Representative Jim El ki ns
Representative Jay Ranras
Representative Berta Gardner
Representati ve Max G uenberg

VEVMBERS ABSENT
Representative Bob Lynn
COWM TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 116
"An Act relating to the liability of certain persons for entry
and remaining on |licensed prem ses."

- MOVED CSHB 116( STA) OUT OF COWM TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO 114

"An Act relating to the retaining of certain privileges of a
parent in a relinquishnent and term nation of a parent and child
rel ati onship proceeding; relating to eligibility for permanent
fund dividends for certain children in the custody of the state;
relating to child in need of aid proceedings and juvenile
del i nquency proceedi ngs; and providing for an effective date."

- HEARD AND HELD
HOUSE BI LL NO. 121
"An Act relating to consolidating or abolishing certain service
areas in second class boroughs.™

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 12
"An Act relating to televisions and nonitors in notor vehicles."

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- March 1, 2005



HOUSE BI LL NO. 34

"An Act relating to the expungenent of records relating
conviction set asides granted after suspended inposition
sent ence. "

- BILL HEARI NG POSTPONED
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 116

SHORT TITLE: M NORS ON LI CENSED PREM SES
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) MEYER

01/ 28/ 05 (H READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 28/ 05 (H) STA, JUD

03/ 01/ 05 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106
BILL: HB 114

SHORT TI TLE: TERM PARENTAL RTS/ Cl NA/ DELI NQUENCY CASES
SPONSOR(s) : RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

01/ 26/ 05 (H READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
01/ 26/ 05 (H STA, HES, JUD

03/ 01/ 05 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: HB 121

SHORT TI TLE: SERVI CE AREAS | N SECOND CLASS BOROUGHS
SPONSOR(s): COMMUNI TY & REG ONAL AFFAI RS

to
of

02/ 02/ 05 (H READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS

02/ 02/ 05 (H CRA, STA

02/ 15/ 05 (H) CRA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 124

02/ 15/ 05 (H Heard & Hel d

02/ 15/ 05 (H M NUTE( CRA)

02/ 24/ 05 (H) CRA RPT CS(CRA) NT 1DP 5NR

02/ 24/ 05 (H DP: THOMAS;

02/ 24/ 05 (H) NR.  CISSNA, NEUMAN, SALMON, LEDOUX,
OLSON

02/ 24/ 05 (H CRA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 124

02/ 24/ 05 (H) Moved CSHB 121(CRA) Qut of Committee

02/ 24/ 05 (H) M NUTE( CRA)

03/ 01/ 05 (H STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE KEVI N MEYER
Al aska State Legislature

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- March 1,

2005



Juneau, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as sponsor of HB 116.

DOUGLAS B. GRIFFIN, Director

Al cohol Beverage Control Board ("ABC' Board)

Department of Public Safety

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Answered questions on behalf of the
departnent during the hearing on HB 116.

M KE PAW.OABKI , St aff

to Representative Kevin Meyer

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions during the hearing on HB
116, on behalf of Representative Meyer, sponsor.

Cl NDY CASHEN, Executive Director

Mot hers Agai nst Drunk Driving (MADD)

Juneau Chapter

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 116.

DI ANNE OLSEN, Chief Assistant Attorney General

— Statew de Section Supervisor

Human Servi ces Section

Cvil Division (Anchorage)

Departnent of Law

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Introduced HB 114 on behalf of the
depart nent.

LI NDA W LSON, Deputy Director

Central Ofice, Public Defender Agency
Depart ment of Adm nistration

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of the agency in
support of certain aspects of HB 114, and to specify other
aspects of the bill as problematic.

KACI SCHRCEDER, St aff

to Representative Bill Thomas

House Community and Regi onal Affairs Standing Conmittee

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: I ntroduced HB 121 on behalf of the House
Communi ty and Regi onal Affairs Standing Conmttee.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- March 1, 2005



RYNNI EVA MOSS, Chair

Road Conm ssi on

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered questions during the hearing on HB
121.

RENE BROKER, Attorney at Law

Fai rbanks North Star Borough

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of the Fairbanks North
Star Borough in support of HB 121.

DAN BOCKHORST, Local Boundary Comm ssion

Central Ofice

Di vision of Community Advocacy

Departnent of Comrerce, Community, & Econom c Devel opnent

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Made observations regarding HB 121 on
behal f of the departnent.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR PAUL SEATON called the House State Affairs Standing

Conmittee neeting to order at 8:04:52 AM Representati ves
Gatto, Elkins, Gardner, and Seaton were present at the call to
order. Representatives Ranras and Guenberg arrived as the

meeting was in progress.

HB 166- VETERANS' MEMORI AL CERTI FI CATES

8:06: 09 AM

CHAI R SEATON announced that the first order of business was
HOUSE BILL NO. 116, "An Act relating to the liability of certain
persons for entry and renmaining on |icensed prem ses.”

8:06:21 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KEVI N MEYER, Al aska State Legislature, as sponsor
of HB 116, said the proposed legislation would protect mnors
who work with peace officers in sting operations.

8:06: 37 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ELKINS noved to adopt the conmittee substitute
(CS) for 116, Version 24-LS0379\G Luckhaupt, 2/9/05, as a work

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- March 1, 2005



draft. There being no objection, Version G was before the
conmittee.

8:07:04 AM

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER continued with his introduction of the
bill. He noted that Version G would add a second section to the
original version, applying the intent to both instances of civil

litability as it pertains to alcohol beverage status. Version G
corrects an oversight in the civil liability provisions of AS
4.16.049 and . 065. He rem nded the conmttee that, in the |ast
| egi sl ative session, he had brought forth House Bill 428, which
created a civil liability penalty for violations of AS 4.16. 060.
AS 4.16.049 and .065 allow a person with an al coholic beverage
license to bring civil action against a mnor who violates the
provisions of those statutes, including: a mnor who 1is
knowi ngly entering or remaining on a licensed prem se; a mnor
soliciting others to purchase alcohol for them and a mnor
presenting false identification. The fine can be up to $1, 000.
Representative Meyer said the problemis that when the origina

| egi sl ati on was passed, [underage] volunteers who nmay be working
with law enforcenment on various sting operations were not
exenpt ed.

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER said the conpliance checks done are a good

enf orcenent tool. Sonme establishnents follow the law better
t han ot hers. He related first-hand experience in having been
asked by a mnor to buy alcohol. When he refused, the mnor

told him that she was working with the Mdthers Against Drunk
Driving (MADD) Youth For Action group, and she was with a |aw
enforcenment officer who was in an unmarked car. He said [HB
116] would try to fill a loophole. He added, "I don't think we
ever intended for establishments to take action agai nst kids who
were actually working with |aw enforcenent on sting operations.”
8:09: 56 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ELKI NS asked how many youth have been prosecut ed.
8:10: 15 AM

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER said he doesn't know the actual nunbers,
but it's "in the 100s."

8:10: 55 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- March 1, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE ELKI NS asked how many of the youth who signed up
for the program nmay have been in trouble for mnor consum ng and
did so to try to "clean up their slate.”

8:12: 20 AM

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER indicated that others present to testify
may be better able to answer that question.

8:13:35 AM

DOUGLAS B. GRIFFIN, Director, Alcohol Beverage Control Board
("ABC' Board), Departnent of Public Safety, in response to
Representative Elkins' question, said generally that's not the
manner in which underage people are recruited; however, he said
he's not 100 percent certain the situation Representative Elkins

descri bed doesn't exist. He listed sonme of the places from
which youth are recruited, including: the Youth In Action
program in Juneau, MADD, underage mlitary personnel, college
coeds, and sone high school students. He noted that the youth

are pai d about $10 an hour.

8:14: 43 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ELKI NS asked who runs the program
8:14:56 AM

MR. CGRIFFIN responded that he has run the program through |oca

police and it's still possible for local police to get their own
grant to do this type of work; however, since noving the ABC
Board over to the Departnent of Public Safety, the board has
opted to have Alaska State Troopers run the operations. He
enphasi zed that the intent is not to be deceptive; the desire is
to use underage people who |l ook their age. M. Giffin reported
that since the program s inception, the failure rate has dropped
from 50 percent to bel ow 10 percent.

8.:17: 47 AM

MR CGRIFFIN, in response to questions from Representative
Ranras, said fake identification (ID) is not used and often an
ID is not used at all. Sonetimes a youth participant may use
his/her existing ID. The average age of the youth is 18, while
sone 19 or 20 years of age are used. | f soneone is used who is

approaching the age of 21, they are dressed to | ook young. He
reiterated that the intent is not to fool people regarding the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- March 1, 2005



person's age. He added, "W prefer to call these conpliance
checks. "

8:20:40 AM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS said the program is successful; however
he expressed concern that hard-working servers would think that
a person showing an ID wouldn't do so unless he/she was 21 or
ol der.

8:.22:02 AM

MR GRIFFIN said that's wunfortunate, but a server nust do
hi s/ her job. If the action is fought, perhaps a prosecutor
woul d decide not to prosecute, but it's not the ABC board's
deci si on.

8:24:00 AM

CHAI R SEATON asked the conmttee nenbers to keep their questions
within the context of the bill.

8:24:23 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG directed attention to the phrase
"ot herwi se observes" on [page 1 of Version @G, lines 7 and 13
and he remarked that that inplies visualization. He asked if

there is a possibility of using wwring in the future.
8:25:01 AM

MR CRIFFIN said that's a good point for possible instances
where there may not be direct visualization.

8:25:54 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG sai d he would work on that in the House
Judiciary Standing Comm ttee. He said there are simlar Kkinds
of situations regardi ng underage persons purchasing cigarettes,
and he suggested considering simlar |anguage for that.

8:26:47 AM

MR GRIFFIN said cigarettes are outside the ABC Board's
jurisdiction.

8:27:15 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- March 1, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked about a possible cooperative
sting involving soneone underage trying to buy both al cohol and
cigarettes in a bar.

8:27:57 AM

MR. CRIFFIN reiterated that the ABC Board does not do anything
related to tobacco and, to his know edge, said the tobacco
i ndustry doesn't oversee anything related to the sale of
al cohol. He said there are situations where a person old enough
to buy tobacco, but not old enough to buy liquor, gets his/her
I icense revoked because of going into a liquor store to buy the
t obacco.

8:29: 09 AM
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG suggested finding a way to conbine

tobacco and alcohol as they relate to conpliance, and to
consider narrowing the title of the bill.

8:29:17 AM

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER said he is concerned about youth having
access to tobacco; however, he said, "I don't believe we have
the civil liability with the tobacco as we do the al cohol . ™
8:.29:37 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if there are people "unacconpanied
unobserved, and unwired" who are sinply patrolling areas to
cal cul ate which areas need the npbst concentration.

8:30:41 AM

MR. CGRIFFIN answered no. He said that does not conport with the
way the ABC Board operates its program He outlined the program
again and added that all the stores are blanketed, and sone bars
as wel | .

8:31: 20 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if it is possible to say soneone is
"otherwi se observed" if he/she conmes back wth a voice
recordi ng, video recording, or photograph.

8:31:47 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- March 1, 2005



MR CRIFFIN said that may be a |egal question. He reiterated
that recording equipnment is not currently used. An attenpt is
made to have direct observation, with a police officer or state
t rooper near by.

8:32:44 AM

CHAI R SEATON directed attention to page 1, [lines 11-12], which
read as follows: "if a person perfornms an act proscribed under
this section". He asked if that refers to participation in the

proj ect or the purchasing of alcohol.
8. 33:. 06 AM

M KE PAWOMKI, Staff to Representative Kevin Myer, Al aska
State Legislature, testifying on behalf of Representative Myer,
sponsor, clarified that the |anguage refers to the acts listed
in AS 04.16.060 [which read as follows]:

Sec. 04.16. 060. Purchase by or delivery to persons
under the age of 21.

(a) A person under the age of 21 years nay not
purchase alcoholic beverages or solicit another to
pur chase al coholic beverages for the person under the
age of 21.

(b) A person may not influence the sale, gift, or
service of an alcoholic beverage to a person under the
age of 21 years, by msrepresenting the age of that

per son.
(c) A person my not order or receive an
al coholic beverage from a |icensee, an agent or

enpl oyee of the licensee, or another person, for the
purpose of selling, giving, or serving it to a person
under the age of 21 years.

(d) A person under the age of 21 years nay not
enter |icensed prem ses where al coholic beverages are
sold and offer or present to a licensee or an agent or
enpl oyee of the licensee a birth certificate or other
witten evidence of age, that is fraudulent or false
or that is not actually the person's own, or otherw se
m srepresent the person's age, for the purpose of
inducing the licensee or an agent or enployee of the
licensee to sell, give, serve, or furnish alcoholic
beverages contrary to | aw.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -9- March 1, 2005



(e) A person under the age of 21 who is seeking
to enter and remain in a licensed prenm ses under AS
04.16.049(a)(2) or (3) my not msrepresent the
person's age or having obtained the consent of the
parent or guardian required by that section.

8:34:24 AM

Cl NDY CASHEN, Executive Director, Mthers Against Drunk Driving
(MADD), Juneau Chapter, stated her support of HB 116. She told
the commttee that the Juneau Chapter's Youth In Action nenbers
are trained to do the conpliance checks. She confirned that
those picked to participate are young - one of themis a 14-
year-old with braces - and in no way are supposed to look 21 to
f ool people. Ms. Cashen noted that those who are follow ng the
| aw are publicly thanked.

8:37:08 AM

MR GRIFFIN, in response to a question from Representative
El kins regarding how many cases involve mnors buying liquor in
a store versus how many involve mnors asking soneone outside
the store to purchase the liquor for them said he would have to

i nvestigate an answer. He said the main focus of the ABC Board
has been to get clerks trained, and he expressed pleasure at the
nunbers droppi ng under 10 percent. He said the secondary step

is getting people not to buy for those underage. M. Giffin
said the "shoulder tap" nethod of getting an of-age person to
buy for an underage person [in a conpliance check] is relatively
new.

8:39: 08 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ELKINS offered his understanding that nost people
who buy al cohol for underage people are in their early twenties.

8:39:31 AM

MR. GRIFFIN responded that one study shows "that 65 percent of
t he al cohol provided to underage people [is] provided by parents
of ... old-enough friends or siblings." He stated that the
conpliance check will not, in and of itself, solve the problem
of underage access to alcohol, but it's one step to solving the
problem He said the next step is to try to educate the public,
which will probably be done initially with a nedia canpaign. He
said several groups are working together to pool noney for the
nedia effort.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 10- March 1, 2005



8:41:11 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ELKINS asked M. Giffin how he would rate the
Techni ques in Al cohol Mnagenent (TAM program overall.

8:41:35 AM

MR. GRIFFIN replied that the programis not perfect, because the
participants probably don't |earn everything they need to know
in a four- to five-hour class; however, it provides a certain
| evel of wunderstanding and professionalism to people who sell
al cohol .

8:42:26 AM

MR GRIFFIN, in response to a question from Chair Seaton,
expl ained that TAMis one of about three alcohol server prograns
that the ABC Board has approved. The training is required and
those who have it nust get recertified every three years.
Anyone working in an establishnent that serves al cohol mnust be
able to show their certification to a police officer or ABC
Board nmenber upon denand.

8:44: 49 AM

MR GRIFFIN, in response to a question from Representative
Gatto, said to his know edge there have not been any studies
done to find out whether one particular age clerk is nore likely
to sell to a mnor than another. In response to Representative
Gatto's exanple that a 2l1-year-old clerk may be nore likely to
sell to a mnor, he pointed out that there actually may be an
advantage to a younger clerk's knowng who's of age. He
enphasi zed that he doesn't want to junp to any conclusions
regarding a certain age clerk being better than another.

8:46: 43 AM
REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG suggested it may be a good idea to add

a subsection (e) to AS 04.16.065 specifically saying that a
m nor not be subject to civil penalty.

8:47:50 AM

MR,  PAWOWSKI responded that "the «civil liability in [AS
04. 16. 065] doesn't trigger until there's a violation of
[ 04. 16. 060]."

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- March 1, 2005



8:49: 32 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG expl ai ned that the purpose of HB 116 is
to provide sone inmmunization and assurance that if a young
person works for ABC Board in conducting a conpliance check,
they are not going to be "hit with a civil penalty.”

8:51: 03 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG asked M. Giffin if there is a
statutory requirenent in regulations that requires bartenders
and servers to have trai ning.

8:51: 35 AM

MR. CGRIFFIN answered yes. He noted that the regulation is
13 AAC 104.465 and the statutory requirenent is AS 04.21.025.
In response to a followup question from Representative
Gruenberg, he said there is no provision in AS 04.24.025 that
requires that a person who sells to a mnor be ordered to
undergo additional training. He said it may be sonething that
occurs, but very often that person is fired.

8:53:51 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if the ABC Board would like to
have the authority in AS 04.24.025 to require the |icensee and
clerk to have additional training.

8:54:15 AM

MR. CRIFFIN said he would like to think about that. He said he
thinks the board has the authority to do that now  Sonething in
statute nmaking it clear that the board has that option wouldn't
hurt, he added, but it may not be necessary.

8:55:26 AM

CHAI R SEATON asked the conmmittee to refocus on the issue of
exenpting liability.

8: 55: 46 AM
REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS congratulated the ABC Board on its

"splendid approach” over the last few years. Not wi t hst andi ng
that, he said he would oppose [HB 116]. He indicated that there

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- March 1, 2005



is a difference between using the word "conpliance" versus the
word "sting," and he nentioned being on "the receiving end of
this." He related an anecdote regarding a young wonan he
overheard on a plane who was worried about using her real ID to
buy alcoholic drinks at bars on her twenty-first birthday,
because she had been using her sister's ID for many years in
t hose sane bars.

8:58: 07 AM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS referred to a sentence in the letter from
the ABC Board [included in the commttee packet], which read as
fol | ows:

One tactic that has been raised by Iliquor |icensees
that do not Iike this increased oversight and
enforcement is the claim that |aw enforcenent agents
are breaking the law to enforce the law by sending
underage persons on to licensed premises in violation
of AS 04. 16. 049.

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS said, "I guess that's ny issue.” He
observed that people who work in the food service industry are
often there because it's the best fit for them He said he is
in favor of prosecuting people who [serve alcohol] to people who
say they have left there IDs at home, for exanple; however, he
expressed concern for those who are being shown |Ds, but don't
catch that they aren't valid. Representative Ranras said his
prof essional bartenders take the tine to really look at an ID,
but he indicated that his servers are often in a rush and
dealing with many custoners. Sone of them have been in the
i ndustry for a short time, and it's those servers who, he
i ndi cated, are being preyed upon. He asked, "How long do you
| ook at a piece of ID for?"

9: 03: 55 AM

CHAI R SEATON asked, "Is the law that you can't serve to soneone
under 21, or is the law that you have to check everyone's |D?"

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS answer ed, "Both."
9:04: 37 AM

CHAI R SEATON asked if it would be in violation of law if soneone
over 21 is served alcohol, "with or without ID."

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 13- March 1, 2005



9:04: 50 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ELKI NS noted that nost establishnments have a form

that a person can fill out swearing that they are 21.

9:06: 20 AM

CHAI R SEATON said it's obvious that showing the [ID] is not |aw,
or everyone would have to show their ID every tine. He asked
the commttee to refocus on the intent of the bill, which he

said is to allow a mnor to participate in a conpliance check
wi t hout fear of civil action.

9:07: 44 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER sai d she thinks everyone present is aware
of Alaska's problemw th alcohol. She said the state has agreed
to a mnimm drinking age, and those serving al cohol cannot do
so to those underage. She indicated that there are a lot of
prograns to ensure the law is followed; HB 116 would protect
those minors working with |aw enforcenent. She stated her

support of [HB 116].
9:09: 29 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO revealed that in his 26 years working in an
anbul ance and fire truck he has responded to nore traffic
accidents than he can count, and many of those accidents were
caused by either soneone "drinking too nuch or drinking too
young." He said the innocent people are often the ones who are
the victins.

9:09: 56 AM

CHAI R SEATON asked the commttee to refocus on the bill.

9:10: 14 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG, in response to Representative Gatto's
reference to the ABC Board's letter, said there are many
i nstances where the law is broken to enforce law, and he said
that's an issue that should be consi dered.

9:11: 28 AM

CHAI R SEATON clarified that if the conmttee were to pass HB
116, those underage youth who work with |aw enforcenent on

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- March 1, 2005



conpl i ance checks would not be breaking the |aw, because there
woul d be a built-in exception to the | aw.

9:12: 02 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG concurr ed. He referred to AS 11.81.420
[(a)], which read as foll ows:

Sec. 11.81.420. Justification: Performance of public
duty.

(a) Unless inconsistent with AS 11.81.320 -
11.81. 410, conduct which would otherwi se constitute an
offense is justified when it is required or authorized
by Iaw or by a judicial decree, judgnent, or order.

9:12: 29 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO noved to report HB 116 out of comittee
with individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal
not es.

CHAI R SEATON noted that an objection had been voi ced.
9:13:51 AM

A roll call vote was taken. Representatives Gardner, G uenberg,
Gatto, and Seaton voted in favor of CSHB 116, Version 24-
LS0379\ G, Luckhaupt, 2/9/05. Representatives Elkins and Ranras
voted against it. Therefore, CSHB 116( STA) was reported out of
the House State Affairs Standing Commttee by a vote of 4-2.

9:14: 02 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked that the record show that the
bill passed by a majority of the commttee.

HB 114- TERM PARENTAL RTS/ Cl NA/ DELI NQUENCY CASES

9:14: 32 AM

CHAI R SEATON announced that the next order of business was HOUSE
BILL NO 114, "An Act relating to the retaining of certain
privileges of a parent in a relinquishment and term nation of a
par ent and child relationship pr oceedi ng; relating to
eligibility for permanent fund dividends for certain children in
the custody of the state; relating to child in need of aid

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -15- March 1, 2005



proceedi ngs and juvenile delinquency proceedings; and providing
for an effective date.”

9:14:59 AM

DI ANNE OLSEN, Chief Assistant Attorney GCeneral - Statew de
Section Supervisor, Human Services Section, GCivil Division
(Anchorage), Departnent of Law, testifying on behalf of the
departnent, introduced HB 114. She noted that the proposed

| egi sl ation includes several distinct provisions relating to the
child protection system each constitutes a step toward nmaking
Al aska's children safer, healthier, and nore secure, wthout
unr easonabl y expandi ng gover nnental powers.

M5. OLSEN said [HB 114] would anmend AS 25.23.180, to permt
parents to relinquish their parental rights to a child, while
retaining certain privileges, such as ongoing conmunication or
visitation with the child. The anmendnent is in response to a
recent Al aska Suprene Court decision, holding that the current
| aw prohibits a parent from retaining any rights or privileges
in a relinquishnment. She said that in some cases o0ngoing
contact with the parent is in the child s best interest,
especially when that child is adopted by a relative or a famly
acquai nt ance.

M5. OLSEN noted that the proposed anmendnent would also add
| anguage to AS 43.23.005, to allow children - who are placed
tenporarily by the Departnent of Health & Social Services

outside of the state - in out-of-state treatnment facilities, in
order to maintain eligibility for Al aska permanent fund
di vi dends (PFDs). She noted that sone children require |ong-

term treatment of a nature that is currently unavailable in
Al aska, and such <children are in risk of losing the PFD
eligibility if they remain out of the state in excess of the
statutorily proscribed period of time and are unable to return
to the state. She said the departnent feels that these Al askan
children should not | oose the privilege [of receiving a PFD as
a result of having been placed in the treatnment facility which
is not available in the state.

M5. OLSEN said HB 114 would also add |anguage to AS 47.10. 020,
to clarify that the court nay issue any orders necessary to aid
the departnent in its investigation of an allegation of child

abuse and negl ect. She noted that the |anguage would resolve
any anbiguity toward the ability of judges to issue orders
across the state through various jurisdictions. A new

subsection would also be added to the statute to clarify that

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 16- March 1, 2005



the department is not required to obtain authorization fromthe
court to conduct an investigation of a protective services
report, fornerly know as a "report of harm" or to file a
petition in court.

M5. OLSEN stated that existing federal law requires the
testinmony of a qualified expert witness in order for the court
to authorize the out-of-home placement of or termnation of
parental rights to an Indian child. A new section would be
added to AS 47.10.145 to permt the courts to conclude, as a
matter of law, that the testinony of a qualified expert wtness
woul d support a finding that placing a child with a parent that
cannot be l|ocated, is absent, or is unknown, would place that
child at substantial risk of harm

M5. COLSEN concluded that [HB 114] would anmend the definition of

the term "nental health professional™ in AS 47.30.915, for
purposes of child in need of aid (CINA) and juvenile delinquency
pr oceedi ngs. In order to authorize placenment of children in
secure residential psychiatric treatnent facilities, the court
must hear the testinony of a nmental health professional. The

current definition excludes professionals who may be |icensed to
practice in states other than Al aska. The testinmony of such a
professional is often <critical 1in <cases involving Al aska
children who are already placed out-of-state by the departnent.
Ms. O sen said the expansion of the existing definition is
necessary to ensure that Alaska children who are placed outside
of the state receive the psychiatric treatnent that they need.

9:19: 13 AM

CHAI R SEATON said no one has had a chance to read the conmmttee
substitute (CS) for HB 114, Version 24-CGH1108\G M schel
2/ 28/ 05; therefore, he plans to hold the bill after the
commttee has asked questions of the w tnesses.

9:19:34 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked Ms. dsen to clarify how HB 114
would change the ability of the expert wtness to give
t esti nony.

9:20: 00 AM
MS. OLSEN responded that under the Indian Child Wlfare Act it

is currently required that, in order to place a child in foster
care, or to termnate parental rights, there mnust be evidence

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- March 1, 2005



supported by a qualified expert witness that returning the child
to the parent is likely to result in serious physical or
enotional harm In the case of an absent parent, she said it's
sinply a matter of conmon sense that the child can't be put back
with that parent, because the departnent has no idea where they
are. She offered further details.

9:22:31 AM
REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER stated her understanding that, in
summary, Ms. O sen was saying that the bill would elimnate the

necessity of having an expert wtness and would codify the
assunption that if a parent is absent, an expert wtness would
not be necessary.

9:22:46 AM

M5. OLSEN said yes.

9:22:51 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG i ndi cated he was unconfortable with the
| anguage of Section 5, but not certain why. He asked Ms. O sen

to provide him with the court cases to which Sections 1 and 5
pertain.

9:25:01 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG directed attention to page 1, line 13
[of the CS that was not yet adopted], which read: "A
relinquishment my not be wthdrawmm or invalidated”. He
observed, "It seens to divest the court of jurisdiction to
invalidate such a relinquishment.” He said he would have

serious problens with divesting a court of its jurisdiction. He
turned to the |anguage beginning on the top of page 2, which
read: "that a retained privilege has been withheld from the
relinquishing parent"”. He said there could be a child in state
custody, whose parent was promsed visitation, and the state
could deliberately withhold visitation from that parent. The
parent would have no |egal recourse, at all. He said, "I think
that's terrible public policy. Wy would you justify that?"

9:26:12 AM
M5. OLSEN responded that the section to which Representative

Gruenberg referred is intended to apply to a relinquishment that
is taken prior to an adoption. The relinquishnments, as a matter

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- March 1, 2005



of policy by both the departnment and the attorney general's
office, would not be taken unless they were agreed to by the
adopted parent. She stated her belief that there is currently a
state statute that does not allow an adoption to be overturned
for any reason after one year, and, under the Indian Child
Welfare Act, it's two years "if it's a matter of duress.”

9:27:34 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said a provision already exists that
"allows conditions for retaining privileges," so he questioned
if Section 1 would be necessary. He noted that there is a one-
year statute of limtations in the Adoption Act, and "this would
seemto run contrary to that." He also remarked, "This may very
wel |l be unconstitutional if it were intended to conflict wth
the federally enacted Indian Child Wlfare Act, which would
retain supremacy under the supremacy cl ause.”

9:29: 15 AM

CHAIR SEATON reiterated that the [unadopted] CS was just
received by the commttee. He asked the witness to get back to
the comrittee wth answers to Representative Guenberg's
guestions in witing. Chair Seaton said he would like to get a
synopsis of "where we're going with that section and how you
interpret that, as well."

The commttee took an at-ease from 9:30:22 AMto 9:30:47 AM

9:31:41 AM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS said other groups outside of Al aska, such
as athletes training out-of-state and Peace Corps volunteers, do
not qualify for the Al aska permanent fund dividend (PFD). He
asked why a distinction is being drawn between them and an
individual who is in custody of the Departnment of Health &
Soci al Services and placed outside of the state for nedical and
behavi oral treatnent.

9:32:19 AM

M5. OLSEN replied that she doesn't know if the departnment has
considered that or thought that there was a distinction. She
said primarily the focus has been on the children who were in
custody of the departnent and sent out of the state, sonetines
against their will or the will of their parents, and thought

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- March 1, 2005



that "this would be a good opportunity to resolve that issue for
them"

9:32:41 AM
CHAI R SEATON opened public testinony.
9:32: 58 AM

LI NDA WLSON, Deputy Director, Central Ofice, Public Defender
Agency, Departnment of  Adm nistration, said she currently
supervises the Famly Law Section of the departnent, which is a
section that includes attorneys who represent parents in child
protective proceedings in cases that [HB 114] would affect. She
said she also supervises attorneys who represent juveniles in
juvenil e del i nquency cases.

M5. WLSON stated that [the agency] supports sone aspects of the

bill, particularly Section 2, that wuld allow for PFD
eligibility. She said the "spirit of Section 1," regarding
retaining privileges in a relinquishment, is well intended;
however, it doesn't do as nuch as it could. She said,
"Retaining a privilege that really is not enforceable - has no
teeth in it - is ... alnost like false advertisenent; you're

telling the parent, 'You can retain a privilege, but it's non-
enforceable, and you can't void the relinquishnment or the

adoption with it.'"™ She opined that it would be better to "put
sonething in the adoption decree."” She said she thinks the
policy behind finality in adoption is a sound one. She

clarified as foll ows:

The fact t hat you maybe coul dn't voi d t he
relinqui shment or the adoption may be a sound policy,

but | think there needs to be sonmething in the
adoption decree to require that visitation - if it's
in the best interest of the child - be enforceable, so
that, down the road, if the adopted parents are
wi thholding visitation, and that's not in the child's
best interest, ... a biological parent could initiate

some action in the probate court that handles the

adoption, to try to get that wvisitation that they

t hought they were going to get when they relinqui shed.
9:36: 42 AM

M5. WLSON turned to Section 5, regarding the expert wtness.
She said Section 5 would take away the qualified expert fromthe

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- March 1, 2005



scene. She noted that, under the federal Indian Child Welfare

Act, the state has to "put on an expert witness.”" To elimnate
that requirenment is problenmatic. She said M. dson had
previously remarked that "in <cases «currently, it nmay be
stipulated.” She enphasized that stipulated is different than
having the court "inpose it without a stipulation.” She offered
further details. Ms. WIlson said she thinks there are good

reasons for having a qualified expert.
9:38: 38 AM

CHAIR SEATON said the issue before the comittee is a
conplicated one and a subconmttee may be formed to | ook at the
probl ens in nore detail

9: 39: 08 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked if an attorney appointed to an
absent parent, who may never have net that parent, could
stipulate to an agreenent to dispense with the requirenent of an
expert witness in the absence of the parent.

9:39:32 AM

M5. WLSON said she suspects the attorney could do so, but she
said she thinks there are mny attorneys who would have a
problemw th that.

9:40: 07 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG stated that he thinks an attorney
cannot stipulate on behalf of a client he/she has never net. In
regard to the standard of clear and convincing evidence, he
recollected that the Indian Child Wlfare Act requires "proof
beyond a reasonabl e doubt."” He questioned whether grafting in
state law a lessor standard of clear and convincing evidence
woul d violate the supremacy cl ause.

9:40: 52 AM

M5. WLSON offered her belief that the standard of clear and
convincing evidence has to do with the specific fact of whether
or not the parent can be |ocated. She said, "I don't think
| anguage in the statute affects the 'beyond a reasonabl e doubt
requirenents that are in the Indian Child Wl fare Act for other
things that need to be determ ned under a 'beyond a reasonable
doubt' standard."

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -21- March 1, 2005



9:41:50 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG recommended that the Ofice of Public
Advocacy and the Famly Law Section be involved wth hearings
regarding [HB 114].

9:42: 07 AM

CHAI R SEATON asked Representative Gatto, Gardner, G uenberg, and
Seaton to serve on a subcommttee. He said he would also take
part, but Representative Gatto would chair the subcommttee.
9:43: 05 AM

M5. WLSON, in response to a request from Chair Seaton, said she
woul d be available to the subcommttee, and she said she would
contact the O fice of Public Advocacy.

9:43: 28 AM

CHAI R SEATON announced that HB 114 was heard and hel d.

HB 121- SERVI CE AREAS | N SECOND CLASS BOROUGHS

9:43: 49 AM

CHAI R SEATON announced that the |ast order of business was HOUSE
BILL NO 121, "An Act relating to consolidating or abolishing
certain service areas in second class boroughs."

[Before the commttee was CSHB 121(CRA), Version 24-LS0396\Y. ]
9:44.: 06 AM

KACI SCHRCEDER, Staff to Representative Bill Thomas, House
Community and Regional Affairs Standing Committee, Al aska State
Legi slature, introduced HB 121 on behalf of the House Comrunity
and Regi onal Affairs Standing Conmttee. MVs. Schr oeder
expl ained that when the state revenue sharing program was in
pl ace, residents of subdivisions |located outside of city limts
were able to rely on state noney to form road service areas.
Now that the revenue sharing program is over, those residents
are no longer able to rely on that state noney, and sone of the
service areas are not taxing thenselves adequately enough to
mai ntain services to the roads. Wthout adequate service, those
roads are deteriorating and becom ng unsafe.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -22- March 1, 2005



M5. SCHRCEDER noted that the borough bears ultimte financial
responsibility for the service areas; however, the borough
cannot assess a borough-wide tax and apply it to the service
ar eas. The proposed legislation would allow second-class
boroughs to consolidate or abolish service areas that are either
nonfunctional or functioning below mninmm standards. At the
same time, the bill would protect those service areas that are
taxing thenselves adequately and performng their services
adequatel y.

9:46: 01 AM

CHAI R SEATON asked if the reason the borough can't tax and
distribute "to the road service areas" is because it doesn't
have the taxing power, or because it can't allocate noney.
9:46: 08 AM

M5. SCHRCEDER said she doesn't know the specifics of the taxing
scheme for the borough, but she indicated that soneone was
online to testify who could answer that question.

9:46: 34 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if the bill addresses groups or areas
that are capabl e of taxing thenselves and el ect not to.

9:46: 39 AM
M5. SCHRCEDER answer ed yes.
9:47: 00 AM

CHAI R SEATON asked if the revenue sharing went to the districts
t hensel ves, or to the borough to be distributed.

9:47: 11 AM
MS. SCHRCEDER sai d she doesn't know.
9:47: 42 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked what the difference is between
the coonmttee substitute (CS) and the original bill.

9:47:55 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 23- March 1, 2005



M5. SCHRCEDER replied that the CS sinply adds an effective date.
9:48: 08 AM

RYNNI EVA MOSS, Chair, Road Conm ssion, said she recognizes that
the [Fairbanks North Star Borough] has a problem with service
areas that choose not to tax thenselves and nmintain the roads.
Those roads create a safety hazard for the borough, and they are
used by anbul ances, fire trucks, and school buses. She said
there is a chance that sonmething could happen and the borough
woul d be held liable. She stated, "This sinply gives a borough
an opportunity to get rid of the risk of being responsible for
service areas that aren't maintained."

M5. MOSS revealed the reason she is following the bill is that
she wants to be assured that it isn't going to disrupt service
areas that do their job properly. She said, "I am very
confortable with the I|anguage here - that it does protect

service areas that are doing their job right, and allows themto
continue doing their job."

M5. MOSS, regarding Chair Seaton's previously stated question
about revenue sharing, sai d, "That was noney that was
appropriated to the borough, and then the borough distributed it
on a per-mle basis."

9:50: 20 AM

M5. MOSS, in response to a question from Chair Seaton, explained
that the borough sends out the bills, while the service area
determines what the mll rate is for road naintenance. In
response to a followup question from Chair Seaton, she noted
that service areas are forned by election of an area; rural
services assist in deciding what the boundaries wll be, then
t he borough clerk arranges for an el ection.

9:51: 17 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO noted that he had served on a road service
ar ea. He asked whether the road service area board is
submtting a mll rate that is being rejected by the borough, or

if it is submitting a request "for zero" that the borough is
accepting.

9:52:19 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 24- March 1, 2005



M5. MOSS explained that, in Fairbanks, several service areas

don't have boards anynore, because the noney dried up. The
borough acted as though it had the authority to authorize
mai nt enance, even though it didn't, because it felt a

responsibility to keep the roads safe.

9:53:11 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked "If there's no board, but a community
decides ... [to] pave the nmain road |eading into a subdivision

are we saying that can't be done anynore by dissolving the
boar d?"

9:53: 28 AM

M5. MOSS answered, "Yes, you are saying that."

9:53:40 AM

CHAI R SEATON offered his understanding that there's nothing [in
the bill] to prevent a new service area fromform ng again.

9:53: 53 AM

M5. MOSS answered that's correct.

9:53: 59 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER of fered her wunderstanding that the bill
woul d actually elimnate the liability that the [road service
area]l board currently has for unsafe conditions, but would in no
way address the issue of unsafe roads.

9:54: 08 AM

M5. MOSS answered that's correct.

9:54:16 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if the borough would remain
responsible for the roads iif the road service area was
abol i shed.

9:54: 38 AM

M5. MOSS answered no. She clarified that, currently, as |long as
a service area exists, it is not a separate entity from the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 25- March 1, 2005



borough, as far as liability is concerned. The purpose of the
bill is to dissolve a service area that creates sone risk, which
woul d take away the liability from the borough. In response to
a followup question from Representative G uenberg, she stated
that the borough does not have road service powers; therefore,
nobody woul d be responsi bl e. She noted that there are hundreds
of roads in the [Fairbanks North Star Borough] today that do not
fall under service areas. She offered exanples.

9:55:40 AM

CHAIR SEATON offered his wunderstanding [HB 121] would only
address second cl ass boroughs.

9:56: 04 AM

M5. MOSS answered yes. She added, "Hone rules operate by
charter, so they do have the capability to do this, just in a
di fferent manner."

9:56: 14 AM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS thanked Ms. Moss for her testinony. He
stated that this issue is a significant one, and he noted that
Fai rbanks has the full support of the Fairbanks North Star
Bor ough assenbly.

9:56: 49 AM

RENE BROKER, Attorney at Law, Fairbanks North Star Borough,
stated the borough's support of HB 121. She said the borough
has 107 road service areas. She said the borough has been
confronted with the cessation of state funding and has service
areas that are unable or unwilling to tax thenselves and thus
have essentially been | egal ly nonf uncti onal and/ or
dysfuncti onal . She stated, "W don't believe that it's ever a
good policy decision to conpletely separate control from
responsi bility, which is where the borough is at right now with
its service areas. So, we're just sinply urging that we regain
some control, but continue to respect the autonony of those
service areas that are functioning as legally intended."

9:58: 09 AM
DAN  BOCKHORST, Local Boundary Conm ssi on, Central Ofice,

Division of Community  Advocacy, Depar t ment of Commer ce,
Community, & Econom c Devel opnent, stated that the departnent

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 26- March 1, 2005



endorses the neasure to give borough governnents the flexibility
to provide for the efficient delivery of services, and [HB 121]
woul d do that for second class boroughs. Not wi t hst andi ng t hat,
he said the departnment would like to nmke two observations
regarding the bill: First, there is nothing unique about a
second cl ass borough that would suggest that the neasures in the
bill are needed for that particular class of borough, but not
for other classes of borough. He said, as noted in previous
testimony, hone rule borough governnents have the capacity to
exenpt thenselves from "this provision," but AS 29.35.450 (d)
applies to honme rule borough governnents. He noted that there
is a petition currently pending that would change the current
classification of the Ketchikan Gateway Borough from second
class to hone rule. The provisions of HB 121 would not extend
to Ketchikan if it were to become a honme rule borough
gover nnent .

MR. BOCKHORST stated his second observation is that the bill, as
witten, gives greater flexibility and authority to a genera
law, second borough than it does to a home rule borough
government, and wunder Alaska's constitution, honme rule 1is
i ntended to provide for maxi num | ocal self governnent.

10: 00: 24 AM

CHAI R SEATON cl osed public testinony.

CHAI R SEATON announced that HB 121 was heard and hel d.

ADJ QURNIVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House

State Affairs Standing Committee neeting was adjourned at
10: 00: 33 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -27- March 1, 2005



